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IN THE MATTER OF

EXXON CORPORATION, ET AL.

Doket 8934. Interlocutory Ordr. Nov. 10, 1977

Granting in part and denying in part of motion by complaint counsel for leave 
modify pending application for interlocutory review and to obtain expeited
decision on modified application.

ORDER GRANTING IN PART AND DENYING IN PART COMPLAINT
COUNSEL S MOTION FOR LEAVE To MODIFY PENDING

ApPLICATION FOR INTERLOCUTORY REVIEW AND To OBTAIN AN

EXPEDITED DECISION ON THE MODIFIED ApPLICATION

Complaint counsel on February 20, 1976, fied with the Adminis-
trative Law Judge a motion for issuance of suhpoenas duces tecum 

respondents. The motion exceeded 1 800 pages and included approxi-

mately 700 numbered specifications' which , according to complaint
counsel

, "

request(edJ a vast number of documents' quite likely
numbering in the milions or tens of milions.'" This was to be
complaint counsel' s first effort to secure documents of a substantive
nature from respondents. In July 1976 , respondents fied individual
and joint objections to the motion and in September complaint
counsel fied a reply which included a revised subpoena request. The
reply contained 950 pages, including over 300 pages of specifications
definitions and instructions and 300 pages of analyses thereof. The
revised request was hardly the shadow of complaint counsel's former
request; it contained approximately 550 numbered specifications.
By his order of November 11, 1976, the ALJ questioned the

practicality of complaint counsel' s discovery strategy. He noted that
complaint counsel had made "what appear to be plausible arguments
why the various avenues of investigation would or might produce
relevant information or might be fruitful in uncovering leads to
relevant information. However , when all of the avenues of investiga-
tion are taken together they add up to an overwhelming and
unreasonable burden upon respondents and an unmanageable
case. '" Accordingly, he denied a major portion of complaint counsel's
motion but authorized the issuance of more limited subpoenas

calling for the production of introductory materials concerning

, Order Denying Major Portion of, but Granting in Part, Complaint Counsel's Motion for Isuance of
Subpona! Duces Tecum to Repondenta and F..tablishing Guideline! WI to any Further Buch Motions, November

1976, at5.
, Motion by Complaint Counsel for IsslJmce of Subponru Duces Teeum to Repondents, February 20, 1976 , IIt

10.

, Order Novemberll I976, at8
'frLat24
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respondents ' structure and operations and certain documents fied
with other government agencies.
In their motion for reconsideration, complaint counsel again

modified their discovery request, agreeing to convert all interrogato-
ries to document requests, to delete specifications that referred to
transcript pages' and to alter the forward cutoff date for documents
to be produced.

As the Judge noted in denying the motion for reconsideration, the
specifications "are so burdensome, particularly with respect to the
time it would take to comply, that, considering also other future
discovery steps proposed to be taken by complaint counsel, the end of
discovery could not realistically be envisioned and a trial date could
not be realistically predicted, except to predict that it would be far
off in the future. '" The Law Judge , pursuant to Section 3.23(b) of the
Rules of Practice, granted complaint counsel's request for permission
to fie an application for interlocutory review.
In January 1977, complaint counsel fied their application for

review and respondents fied their answers. While complaint
counsel's voluminous subpoena application was pending review by
the Commission, they moved, on September 28, 1977, that the
Commission refrain from ruling on the hundreds of individual
specifications in order that they might submit to the ALJ a shorter,
less burdensome and more manageable subpoena.' The motion
before us asks essentially that complaint counsel be permitted to
withdraw the subpoena. We grant that motion, without prejudice.

Complaint counsel also request that the Commission:

(1) instruct the ALJ that the burden of complying with Commission
subpoenas should be evaluated in light of offers by complaint counsel to screen
documents;

(2) instruct the ALl that he has authority under the rules to require the typ
of subpoena compliance conditions and controls proposed by complaint counsel;

(3) rule that complaint counsel in their forthcoming revied information
request, are entitled to substantial discovery into post-complaint events

. The subpon6! isued on November 24 , 1976- The Commision declined repondents' request that it review
the subponas on an interlocutory basiB. Order Denying Reuest for Interlocutory Review, March 8 1977189 
168 J. On July 26, 1971, the Commision Commenced a proeeing to enforce the subponas againt five repondents
that declined to produce certin documenta and one that dedined to prouce any. FT v- Andnw1I Mis. No. 77-
D161 (D-

. Ms.y speifications reueste an documents referr to by a. particular witnes during the coun; 
depoitions and interviews- The AL ruled that "repondents would be require to comb almost 13 00 paes of
depoitions and intervews. . . to fmd BOrne 3,315 pages or portions of pages which purprt to desribe reuire
documents

. .

" Order, November 11 , 1976, at 46.
7 Order Denying Complaint COunsel's Motion for Reonsideration. . , Dember 22, 1976, at 10
o Semingly conceding the wisdom of the AW's November 11 order, complaint counsel asrt that " (tJhe

returnll on the nonsuootative November 24 lIubponas duce teum have afforded UI for the first time an
opportunity to make rellnably informed reuctions in our lIuootnntive dOCument disovery requests. " Complait
Counsel'lI Motion for Lellveto Modify Pending Application. , September 28 1977 , lit 6.
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including the current activities of responderlts reflected in respondents' active or
working files; and

(4) direct the law judge to adopt an expedited time-table for the filing of
respondents' opposition, if any, to complaint counsel's forthcoming revised

document subpoena proposal and for prompt commencement of respondents'
compliance with, or early announcement of any intended noncompliance with
the resulting subpoenas issued by the ALJ.

90 F. T.

We reject the argument advanced by several respondents that the
requests have been mooted by complaint counsel's withdrawal of
their subpoena specifications. The issues presented by these requests
are almost certain to be raised by any new specifications. All but one
of the respondents also assert that these issues are not now properly
before the Commission and that the ALJ must be afforded an
opportunity to decide them in the context of the revised specifica-
tions. In view of their importance, however, we believe it appropriate
to provide the parties and the ALJ some guidance as to our thinking
on the issues raised by the first two requests. Since we wil not be
considering the propriety of specific discovery provisions, these
issues can be addressed without reference to the forthcoming
subpoena application.

The first two requests concern the ALJ' s authority to provide for
discovery methods not explicitly sanctioned by the Rules of
Practice. " In Century 21 Commodore Plaza, Inc., CCH Trade Reg.
Rep. para. 21,276, at 21 177 (89 F. C. 108, 1977), the Commission
held that access orders are authorized by the F. C. Act and that the
Administrative Law Judges may issue such orders under Rule
3.42(c). We believe that the law judges are likewise authorized to
impose production procedures designed to assure orderly compliance
with subpoenas. Cf Ash Groue Cement Co., 77 F. C. 1660 (1970).

We do not mean to suggest, however, that the Administrative Law

. Except perhaps for the fourth isue, we believe that thes isues are fairly within the scope of the AI,J'
D€ember 22, 1976, certification under Rule 3.23(b)

" The AU, in !ling the burden of complaint counsel's requeste disovery, refus to cOI1!:ider 1111
alternative order advanced in their reply on the grounds that it amounte to an order" directing aCCe8 to
respondents' fiet and that such orders tJre not authoriz by our RIdes of Practice. We are inclined to agee with
the ALJ's characteriztion of this propoJ although not with his conclusion that Huch orders are not Iluthorize by
the Ru!es of Practice

" In support of his holding that he lacked authority to impo the production controis suggeste in a seond
Illternative unler propo hy oomplaintcounool. the AL cite language in a footnote to Rule 3.34(hX2) und also in
a notice of propo amendments to the Commilion s disovery rules , 40 F.R. 152,19 (1975), stating that the Rule!
of Pnlctice do not provide for requeBts, or orders, for production of documents fi an alternative method of
disovery, Order, November 11, 1976, at 40.

We do not believe that thes statements are inconsistent with the iouance of an order impoing controls
eoontial to orderly compliance with a suhpona The Commision io 1967 resinded a rule authorizing production
orden; beaus proper us of the newly adopte rules authorizing aubponas duOO tecum to parties during pm- trial
disovery .'maldeJ the Uf\ of such orders IIUperfUOUB. All-State Industries 'Jf North OIrolina. Inc., 72 F, C. 1020
1023 (1967). Until 191i7 , the production order was, in effect. the pre- tria) equivn ent. of I. he subpona duc''S tecum.
Although "orders for the production of documents" lire no longer to be empJoye- in view of the '''' !liJability of
subponas , we do not betieve that the impoition ofnece3ry compHance controis is precluded.
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Judges are free to allow discovery by any method they deem
expedient. Discovery should ordinarily be by the methods described
in the Rules of Practice. Only where necessary to the conduct of "fair
and impartial hearings. . . (and) to avoid delay in the disposition of
proceedings," Rule 3.42(c), may the law judges resort to discovery
methods not explicitly sanctioned by the Rules. Moreover, the
Administrative Law Judges may not depart from the specific
requirements of applicable rules and any orders they issue must, of
course, be authorized by the F. C. Act.

We see no reason to address complaint counsel's third request. The
ALJ has already ruled that complaint counsel are entitled to
discovery of post-complaint materials. Determination of appropriate
forward cutoff dates should be left to the Law Judge s discretion

based on his review of the revised specifications.
Nor have complaint counsel offered suffcient justification for

their fourth request. While we hope that the revised specifications
can be decided expeditiously, there has been no showing of the ALJ'
unwilingness to adopt an appropriate timetable for disposition of
complaint counsel' s forthcoming subpoena proposal. Moreover, since
complaint counsel's proposal is not before us, and, indeed, has

apparently not been completed, we have no basis for determining
what would be an appropriate timetable for a decision by the ALJ on
the revised specifications or for compliance with any specifications
he upholds."

We are unwiling to assume that cases involving complex issues
and large industries are incapable of efficient adjudication. We
believe that complaint counsel's determination to submit a "more
manageable subpoena"" is a step in the right direction. This,

together with the use of discovery procedures tailored to the needs of
complex litigation" and close adherence to the suggestions set forth
in the Manual for Complex Litigation, including continued efforts by
the Law Judge to maintain firm control of the proceeding," wil

uming that, in the circumBtances of this ea, an accC8 order would be appropriate, the AL' aament
of the burden of complaint eounf!l' reuest obviously should tae into account any reduced burdenB reulting

from their screning of repondentB' files. Cf Hunt Fuo and Industrie In.. . FT 286 F.2d 803, 810.12 (9th Cir.
1960), cert. denier! 365 U.S. 877 (1961). We do not decide whether aCCC8 orders or compliance controls should be
impo in this cas, much les the question of the sort of proviioll that would be appropriate.

" Complaint counsl have also suggeste that the Commiaion "authori complait counsel to underte
phas document and data disovery commencing with an initial , vlItly reuced Bubpona duces teum lI
outlined" in their motion. Motion at 9. Complaint counsl do not nee Commiaion authorition to fie a revis
reuest with the AL and we do not underotad complaint counsel to reuest us to endonI a Bubpona we have not

" Motionat6.

pp.

5supra
" Se ManuaL LlO (CCH 1973). The AL' s effort control this ea have ben frustrate by the parties

numerous appeals to the Commiaion. We have entertined this appeal solely to indicate our belief that the RulCt
of Practice afford the trial judge broad power to manage this complicate ea forcefully and effciently. This order

(Continued)
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enable this case to be adjudicated in the foreseeable future.
It is so ordered.

should not be undcrsto to signal an inclination to review rulingB that fire bet left to the reaponeible judgment of
the ALJ. See. e.g" Exxon. Corp., 85 F. G 404 (1975)

" The CommiBion denies the rellest of Texaco Inc. that we BUBpend the pending Bubponu enforcement
proceeding. ABuming that they are now properly before us, we a.i80 reject 8ugge6tions made by varioW!
respondents that we withdraw the cas from 8djudication or otherwi. terminate it.



455 Interlocutory Order

IN THE MATTER OF

BRISTOL-MYERS COMPANY, ET AL. - D. 8917

AMERICAN HOME PRODUCTS CORPORATION, ET AL. -
D. 8918

STERLING DRUG INC., ET AL. - D. 8919

Dockets 8917. 8918. 8919. Interlocutory Order. Nov. 11. 1977

Order remanding to the administrative law judge an order by him denying 

camera treatment of certain documents with instructions to grant in camera
status only to those documents meeting the criteria set forth in the
accompanying Commission opinion.

General Foods Corporation applies for review of the administra-
tive law judge s June 28, 1977 order denying its motion for in camera
treatment of certain documents. The law judge has determined that
interlocutory review would be appropriate under Commission Rule
Section 3. 23(b). We entertain this appeal to clarify the standards as
to when in camera treatment is warranted.
The Commission s Rules, Section 3.45(b), provide that in camera

treatment should be granted only in those unusual and exceptional

circumstances when good cause is found on the record. It is well
established that the person or corporation whose records are
involved can satisfy this burden only by demonstrating that public
disclosure of the documents wil result in "clearly defined, serious
injury. H P. Hood Sons, Inc. 58 F. C. 1184, 1188 (1961).

In this case, General Foods Corporation contends that it will
sustain serious injury because disclosure of these documents wil
provide competitors with the benefits of its research concerning

consumer attitudes toward caffeine. In our opinion, however
documents should not be sealed simply because an applicant asserts
that its competitors would like to possess the information the

documents contain. General Foods Corporation did not provide
answers to such fundamental questions as what in rough terms these
studies cost, or whether their competitors could replicate them today
and at what cost. More importantly, it did not demonstrate that
these studies are significant today. Therefore, we conclude that

General Foods has not yet demonstrated on the record that public
disclosure of these documents wil result in serious injury.

We are impressed with the possibility, however, that the docu-
I Nor is it relevant that Gtneral Foo CorporatiorI relied on complaint counsel's promis to support General

Foo Corporation a motion to limit acces to r pondent' 8 counsel. That promis pertined only to thos portions
of the documents not introuced into evidence, but given to re8pondent' s counsel for purpo of cr08-examination.
As the law judge points out there has ben no ageement by complaint counsel not to offer thes documents as II

(Continued)
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ments in question may warrant in camera treatment. General Foods

Corporation does state that the efforts of several of its employees and
outside consultants, and sigoificant marketing outlays, were in-
volved in producing this research. It also maintains that this
research is relevant to marketing non-caffeine coffee today and that
its competitors would also find it useful. It has raised doubt in our
mind as to the possibilty that it wil incur serious injury. For this
reason, we remand this matter for further consideration, with the
following guidance as to what constitutes "good cause" in terms of
Section 3.45(b).

We do not believe that everything that is loosely called a trade
secret in the world of commerce necessarily meets the standard that
disclosure wil result in serious injury. ' We cannot accept the logic of
General Foods Corporation s argument that its research falls under
the "trade secrets" rubric and therefore, should be accorded 
camera treatment regardless of any discussion of the seriousness of
the injury. On the contrary, to warrant in camera treatment it must
be shown that public disclosure of research, as in this case, or of any
allegedly confidential business information wil result in clearly
defined serious injury. This standard reflects the balance the
Commission has struck between the need for a public record and the
danger of discouraging business from producing and retaining
socially valuable information. The "serious injury" standard is
appropriate because the latter danger can only arise when the
documents in question are secret and material to the applicant'
business, and would less likely be produced if it were known that
they had to be publicly disclosed. In all other circumstances,

disclosure wil not cause serious injury and secrecy would have to
give way to the strong Commission policy favoring a public record.

Accordingly, we believe demonstrating serious injury requires the
applicant to show that the documents are secret, that they are
material to the applicant's business and that public disclosure wil
plausibly discourage the future production of such information. We
find the Restatement of Torts to be instructive regarding the first
two criteria. The following factors should be weighed in considering
both secrecy and materiality:

(1) the extent to which the information is known outside of his
business; (2) the extent to which it is known by employees and

part of the public reord. Morever, the public policy behind un open reord is no les importnt, where complaint
counsel doe not oppo in camero treatment. See. Natiorwl Dairy Pructs Q,rfNrotwn. 61 F. G 144. , 1442 (1964);

and Crown Cork 

&: 

SeICvmpany. 71 F. G1714 , 1716(1967).

, We nee not consider " trade &!rets" II.! defined by 15 U. c. 46(0 beuse that exception to 46(O il

inapplicable to adjudiC8tive proceeings. See Hoo at 1188-89.
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others involved in his business; (3) the extent of measures taken
by him to guard the secrecy of the information; (4) the value of
the information to him and to his ompetitors; (5) the amount of
effort or money expended by him i,' developing the information;
(6) the ease or diffculty with which the information could be
properly acquired or duplicated by others. Restatement of Torts
g757 , Comment bat 6 (19 9).

We would add that when considering (4), the value of the
information, the law judge should place a greater burden on the
applicant when the information is old. Regarding the final criterion,
the law judge should consider whether the production of the
information is required by law or whether the information would
otherwise have been produced and retained regardless of whether it
was to be publicly disclosed. Also, we note that wherever it would not
defeat the purpose of the application, the applicant should demon-
strate good cause using the most specific information available.

In ruling on requests for in camera treatment the law judge should

also consider the strength of the policies favoring disclosure in the
particular factual context. Thus, the general and fundamental policy
favoring government decisions based on publicly available facts may
warrant different treatment for similar information depending upon
the importance of the information to an understanding of the

Commission s decisionmaking processes. Taking this approach. it
may be reasonable in some cases, as Commission Rule 3.45(a) allows
for the law judge to grant in camera treatment for information at the
time it is offered into evidence subject to a later determination by
the law judge or the Commission that public disclosure is required in
the interests of facilitating public understanding of their subsequent
decisions.

We note, to avoid confusion, that this appeal does not present
questions regarding the terms or the advisabilty of any in camera
order that might issue. Compare Mississippi River Fuel Corporation,
69 F. C. 1186 (1966); F.TC. v. Crowther, 430 F. 2d 510 (D.C. Cir.
1970); Ash Grove Cement Co., 77 F. C. 1671 (1970); Eaton Yale &

Towne. Inc., 79 F. C. 998 (1971); and Pepsico, Inc. 83 F. C. 538

(1973).
Finally, consideration of the above factors, like other questions

relating to the proper, fair and expeditious conduct of adjudicative
hearings is a matter within the sound discretion of the administra-

tive law judge.
Because the administrative law judge did not consider and could

not have anticipated many of these issu s, this matter should be and
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it will be remanded to the law judge for reconsideration of his order
denying in camera treatment. In so disposing of the appeal, we

intimate no view on whether said documents should in fact be
afforded in camera treatment.

ORDER REMANDING CASE

This matter having been heard and considered by the Commission
upon the interlocutory appeal fied by General Foods Corporation

from an order of the administrative law judge denying in camera
treatment, and the Commission for reasons stated in the accompany-
ing opinion having determined that General Foods Corporation

failed to demonstrate good cause for in camera treatment.
It is ordered, That this proceeding be, and it hereby is , remanded to

the law judge with instructions that he grant in camera status only
to those documents which upon reconsideration, after the parties
have been afforded an opportunity to present their views thereon
appear to warrant in camera protection in accordance with the
Commission s views as expressed in the accompanying opinion.
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IN THE MATTER OF

THE KROGER COMPANY

CONSENT ORDER, ETC., IN REGARD TO ALLEGED VIOLATION 
THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ACT

Docket 9040. Complaint, June 24, 1975 - Decision, Nov. 11, 1977

This consent order, among other things, requires a Cincinnati, Ohio retail food
store chain to make each of its advertised items readily available for sale to
customers in its stores, to have advertised items correctly priced , and to sell
those items at or below the advertised price. Further, the firm must post
copies of advertisements and notices of the availability of "rainchecks" for
unavailable items.

Appearances

For the Commission: Robert Eliot Easton. Charles L. Hall and
James J Angelone.

For the respondent: Murray H Bring, Robert Pitofsky, Peter K.
Bleakly, Thomas D. Nurmi and M Jean Anderson, Arnold Porter,
Washington, D.

COMPLAINT

Pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Trade Commission Act
and by virtue of the authority vested in it by said Act, the Federal
Trade Commission, having reason to believe that The Kroger
Company, a corporation, hereinafter sometimes referred to as
respondent, has violated the provisions of said Act, and it appearing
to the Commission that a proceeding by it in respect thereto would
be in the public interest, hereby issues its complaint stating its
charges in that respect as follows:

COUNT I

of Section Five of the Federal Trade
Commission Act)

PARAGRAPH 1. Respondent, The Kroger Company, is a corporation
organized, existing and doing business under and by virtue of the
laws of the State of Ohio with its offce and principal place of
business located at 1014 Vine St. , Cincinnati , Ohio.

PAR. 2. Respondent through its wholly-owned subsidiaries is
engaged in the operation of a chain of retail food stores, operating
approximately 1 258 stores in 20 states. Its volume of business is
substantial , totaling approximately 3.8 bilion dollars in retail food

(Alleging violation
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sales in 1973. In the operation of its retail food stores, respondent
offers and sells to its customers an extensive line of products
including food, drugs, cosmetics, and devices as those terms are

defined in the Federal Trade Commission Act, all of which are
sometimes referred to hereinafter as "items. " Some of said items are
manufactured or processed by respondent at its manufacturing and
processing plants located in various states. However, many of said
items are purchased from numerous independent suppliers located
throughout the United States.

PAR. 3. In the course and conduct of its business, as aforesaid,
respondent now causes, and for some time last past has caused

directly or indirectly, the aforesaid items to be shipped and
distributed from its manufacturing and processing plants or from its
other sources of supply to its warehouses, distribution centers, or
retail food stores located in various states other than the state of
origination, distribution or storage of said items. In the further
course and conduct of its business, respondent transmits contracts
business correspondence, monies and other documents from its
stores, offices, and divisions located in states other than the states in
which such contracts , correspondence. monies, and other documents
originated. Respondent maintains, and at all times mentioned herein
has maintained a substantial course of trade in the distribution,
advertising, offering for sale and sale of the aforesaid items in
commerce, as "commerce" is defined in the Federal Trade Commis-
sion Act.

PAR. 4. In the course and conduct of its business, as aforesaid, and
for some time last past respondent has been and is now disseminat-
ing, and causing the dissemination of, certain advertisements
concerning the aforesaid items by various means in commerce, as
commerce" is defined in the Federal Trade Commission Act
including but not limited to, advertisements in newspapers of

general and interstate circulation and other advertising media, for
the purpose of inducing and which were likely to induce, directly or
indirectly, the purchase of said items from respondent; and
respondent has been and is now disseminating, and causing the
dissemination of, advertisements concerning said items by various
means, including but not limited to the aforesaid media, for the
purpose of inducing and which were likely to induce , directly or
indirectly, the attempted or actual purchase from respondent of the
said items in commerce, as "commerce" is defined in the Federal
Trade Commission Act. Many of the said advertisements list or
depict the aforesaid items and also contain statements and represen-
tations concerning the price or term, at which said items would be
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offered for sale. Many of the aforesaid advertisements contain
further direct and express statements and representations concern-
ing the time periods during which the offers would be in effect and
the locations of respondent' s food stores at which the offers would be
made.
PAR. 5. Through the use of such advertisements disseminated in

various areas of the United States served by respondent' s retail food
stores, respondent has represented directly or by implication that in
those stores covered by such advertisements, throughout the
effective periods of the advertised offers, the items listed or depicted
in such advertisements would be:

A. Readily available for sale to customers;
B. Readily and conspicuously available for sale at or below the

advertised prices; and
C. Sold to persons who attempted to purchase such items at

prices at or below the advertised prices.
PAR. 6. In truth and in fact, in a significant number of

respondent' s retail food stores covered by such advertisements
during the effective periods of the advertised offers, a substantial
number of the items listed or depicted in the said advertisements
were:
A. Not readily available for sale;
B. Not readily and conspicuously available for sale at or below

the advertised prices; or
C. Sold to persons who attempted to purchase such items at

prices higher than the advertised prices.

Therefore, the statements and representations as referred to herein,
were false, misleading and deceptive, and each of such advertise-
ments was misleading in material respects and constituted a "false
advertisement " as that term is defined in the Federal Trade
Commission Act.

PAR. 7. By disseminating or causing the dissemination of advertise-

ments which offer or present for sale items as aforesaid, and by
failng to have, in a significant number of its stores covered by such
advertisements, during the effective periods of the advertised offers
substantially all of the aforesaid advertised items:
A. Readily available for sale to customers in quantities suffcient

to meet reasonably anticipated demands;
B. Conspicuously available for sale at or below the advertised

prices;

and by sellng substantial numbers of said
attempting to purchase such items at prices

i terns to persons
in excess of the
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advertised price, respondent has engaged in unfair acts and
practices.

PAR. 8. In the course and conduct of its business, and at all times
referred to herein, respondent has been and now is in substantial
competition in commerce, with corporations, partnerships, firms and
individuals in the retail food and grocery business.

PAR. 9. The use by respondent of the aforesaid unfair and false,
misleading and deceptive statements, representations, acts and
practices, including the dissemination of the aforesaid "false
advertisements," has had the capacity and tendency to mislead
members of the purchasing public into the erroneous and mistaken
belief that the said statements and representations were true, and to
induce such ' persons to go to respondent' s stores and to purchase
from respondent substantial quantities of the advertised items at
prices in excess of the advertised prices and substantial quantities of
items other than the advertised items, some of those other items
being higher priced or otherwise less desirable to Kroger customers
than the unavailable advertised items, by reason of such erroneous

and mistaken belief.
PAR. 10. The acts and practices as aforesaid, and the dissemination

by respondent of the false advertisements, as aforesaid, were all to
the prejudice and injury of the public and of respondent's competi-
tors and constituted unfair methods of competition in commerce and
unfair or deceptive acts or practices in commerce in violation of
Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act.

COUNT II

(Alleging violations of the Federal Trade Commission Trade Regulation
Rule Concerning Retail Food Store Advertising and Marketing Practices
(16 C.F.R. 424), and Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commssion Act, the
allegations of Paragraphs One , Two , Three, Four, and Eight, respectively,
of Count I hereof are incorporated by reference in Count II as if fully set
forth verbatim)

PAR. 11. The Federal Trade Commission, pursuant to the Federal
Trade Commission Act, as amended, 15 D. C. 41 et seq. and the
provisions of Subpart B, Part 1, of the Commission s Procedures and
Rules of Practice, 16 C. R. 1.11 , et seq. , conducted a proceeding for
the promulgation of a trade regulation rule regarding retail food
store advertising and marketing practices. Notice of this proceeding,
including a proposed rule, was published in the Federal Register 

November 14, 1969 (34 F.R. 18252). Interested parties were thereaf-
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ter afforded opportunity to participate in the proceeding through the
submission of written data, views, and arguments, and to appear and
orally express their views as to the proposed rule and to suggest

amendments, revisions, and additions thereto.
The Commission considered all relevant matters of fact, law,

policy, and discretion, including the data, views, and arguments
presented on the record by interested parties in response to the
Notice as indicated in the accompanying Statement of Basis and
Purpose (36 F.R. 8777 (May 13, 1971)) and as prescribed by law,
determined that the adoption of the trade regulation rule was in the
public interest, and, accordingly, promulgated the Trade Regulation
Rule Concerning Retail Food Store Advertising and Marketing
Practices on May 13, 1971 , effective July 12, 1971.

PAR. 12. Respondent is a member of the retail food store industry,
and its acts and practices in connection with the sale and offering for
sale of food and grocery products or other merchandise being subject
to the jurisdiction of Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act
are within the intent and meaning of, and are subject to, the
provisions of the aforesaid Trade Regulation Rule.

PAR. 13. In connection with its aforesaid advertisements, respon-
dent, in a substantial number of instances, has failed to comply with
Paragraph (1) of the aforesaid Trade Regulation Rule by offering
food and grocery products or other merchandise subject to the
jurisdictional requirements of Section 5 of the Federal Trade
Commission Act for sale at stated prices by means of advertisements
disseminated in areas served by certain of its stores which were
covered by such advertisements but which during the advertised sale
period neither had such products in stock readily available for sale to
customers nor provided clear and adequate notice that the items
were in stock and might be obtained upon request.

PAR. 14. In connection with .its advertisements disseminated as
aforesaid, respondent, in a substantial number of instances, has
failed to comply with Paragraph (2) of the aforesaid Trade
Regulation Rule by offering food and grocery products or other
merchandise subject to the jurisdictional requirements of Section 5
of the Federal Trade Commission Act for sale at stated prices by
means of advertisements disseminated in areas served by certain of
its stores which were covered by such advertisements and by failing
in those stores to make certain ofthe advertised items conspicuously
and readily available for sale at or below the advertised prices

during the effective periods of the advertisements, and by failing to
charge out to persons who attempted to purchase such items

substantial numbers of such advertised products at prices at or below
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the advertised prices during the effective periods of the advertise-
men ts.

PAR. 15. Respondent's aforesaid violations of the Trade Regulation
Rule Concerning Retail Food Store Advertising and Marketing
Practices constitute unfair and deceptive acts and practices in
violation of Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act.

Commissioners Thompson and Nye dissenting.

DECISION AND ORDER

The Federal Trade Commission having issued a complaint based
upon alleged acts and practices of The Kroger Co. , a corporation, also
trading and doing business as Kroger, hereinafter referred to as
respondent, and having served such complaint upon respondent and
having withdrawn the proceeding from adjudication based upon a
joint motion for withdrawal from adjudication fied by complaint

counsel and counsel for respondent; and
The respondent and counsel for the Commission having executed

an agreement containing a consent order, an admission by the
respondent of all the jurisdictional facts set forth in the aforesaid
complaint, a statement that the signing of said agreement is for
settlement purposes only and does not constitute an admission by
respondent that the law had been violated as alleged in such
complaint, and waivers and other provisions as required by the
Commission s Rules; and

The Commission having thereafter considered the matter and
having accepted the executed consent agreement and placed such
agreement on the public record for a period of sixty (60) days, and
having duly considered the comments fied pursuant to Sections 2.
and 3.25 of its Rules, now in further conformity with the procedure
prescribed in Section 3.25 of its Rules, the Commission hereby makes
the following jurisdictional findings, and enters the following order:

1. Respondent The Kroger Co. is a corporation organized, existing
and doing business under and by virtue of the laws of the State of
Ohio, with its offce and principal place of business located at 1014

Vine St. , Cincinnati, Ohio. Respondent also operates , trades and does
business under the name Kroger.
2. The Federal Trade Commission has jurisdiction of the subject

matter of this proceeding and of the respondent, and the proceeding
is in the public interest.

ORDER

Definitions: For purposes of this order, "unadjusted rate of
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unavailabilty" means the raw rate of unavailability before the rate
is reduced by those instances of unavailability which are excused by
defenses set forth in Trade Regulation Rule 424, as presently drafted,
or this order.

For purposes of this order, "unadjusted rate of over price marking
or overcharging" means the raw rate of over price marking or
overcharging before the rate is reduced by those instances of over

price marking or overcharging which are excused by defenses set
forth in Trade Regulation Rule 424, as presently drafted, or this
order.

For purposes of this order, "sample" means a selection of at least
forty of respondent's stores, at least 50 percent of which wil be
selected from at least four of the twenty largest standard metropoli-
tan statistical areas in which respondent operates six or more retail
food stores. The survey of the sample must be conducted in at least
three different weeks, and not more than 40 percent of the stores
selected may be surveyed during the same week. Stores to be
surveyed by or on behalf of the Commission shall be chosen in a
manner which is consistent with this definition but which is
otherwise to be determined at the discretion of the staff or the
Commission. Respondent waives any right it might have to challenge
the admissibility into evidence of the results of the survey of the
sample on grounds that those results are not projectable to a
universe greater than the sample. Respondent, however, retains the
right to challenge the evidentiary weight to be given to the results of
any such survey on any legally available basis.

For purposes of this order, the "average, unadjusted rate of
unavailabiliy revealed by a survey of a sample of respondent's retail
food stores" referred to in Section ILB.l. of this order shall be
determined as follows:
a. For each store surveyed, the number of items which the ad

represents to be available in that store and the number of items
found to be unavailable in that store shall be recorded.
b. After the individual stores in the sample are surveyed, the

total number of items represented to be available in the surveyed
stores shall be determined.

c. After the individual stores in the sample are surveyed, the
total number of items found to be unavailable in the surveyed stores
shall be determined.
d. A fraction shall then be constructed using as the numerator

the total number of items found to be unavailable (see subparagraph
c) and as the denominator the total number of items contained in all
relevant advertisements (see subparagraph b).
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e. The fraction described in subparagraph
multiplied by 100 to arrive at a percentage figure.

d shall then be

Total #' items found to be unavailable/ Total #' items contained in advertisements
times 100 equals Average, unadjuste rate of unavailability

For purposes of this order, the "average, unadjusted rate of. . .
over price marking. . . revealed by a survey of a sample of
respondent' s retail food stores" referred to in Section II. 1. of this
order shall be determined as follows:
a. For each store surveyed, the number of items which the ad

represents to be available in that store and the number of items
found to be over price marked in that store shall be recorded.
b. After the individual stores in the sample are surveyed, the

total number of items represented to be available in the surveyed
stores shall be determined.

c. After the individual stores in the sample are surveyed, the
total number of items found to be over price marked in the surveyed
stores shall be determined.
d. A fraction shall then be constructed using as the numerator

the total number of items found to be over price marked (see

subparagraph c) and as the denominator the total number of items
contained in all relevant advertisements (see subparagraph b).
e. The fraction described in subparagraph d shall then 

multiplied by 100 to arrive at a percentage figure.

Total #' items found to be over price marked! Total #' items contained in
advertisements times 100 equals Average, unadjusted rate of over price marking

For purposes of this order, the "average, unadjusted rate of. . 
overcharging. . . revealed by a survey of a sample of respondent'
retail food stores" referred to in Section II. 1. of this order shall be
determined as follows:
a. For each store surveyed, the number of items which the ad

represents to be available in that store and the number of items
found to be overcharged in that store shall be recorded.
b. After the individual stores in the sample are surveyed, the

total number of items represented to be available in the surveyed
stores shall be determined.
c. After the individual stores in the sample are surveyed, the

total number of items found to be overcharged in the surveyed stores
shall be determined.
d. A fraction shall then be constructed using as the numerator

the total number of items found to be overcharged (see subparagraph
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c) and as the denominator the total number of items contained in all
relevant advertisements (see subparagraph b).
e. The fraction described in subparagraph d shall then 

multiplied by 100 to arrive at a percent ge figure.

Total items found to be overcharged/ Total # items contained in advertisements

times 100 equals Average unadjusted rate of overcharging

For purposes of this order

, "

respondent" means The Kroger Co., a
corporation, its successors or assigns, its officers, agents, representa-
tives and employees.

For purposes of this order, "retail food store" shall mean all of
respondent' s food stores, but shall not include convenience stores
(stores less than 4,000 square feet in total area) and drug stores.

1. Prohibited Activities.
It is ordered, That respondent, directly or through any corporation,

subsidiary, division or other device, in connection with the advertis-
ing, offering for sale, sale or distribution of food or grocery products
or other merchandise, hereafter sometimes referred to as items
offered or sold in its retail food stores, in or affecting commerce, as
commerce" is defined in the Federal Trade Commission Act, do

forthwith cease and desist from, directly or indirectly:
A. Disseminating, or causing the dissemination of any advertise-

ment by any means which offers or presents any items for sale at a
stated price, unless throughout the effective period of the advertised
offer at each retail food store covered by the advertisement:

1. Each advertised item is readily available for sale to customers
in the public area of the store, or, if not readily available there, a
clear and conspicuous notice is posted where the item is regularly
displayed which states that the item is in stock and may be readily
obtained upon request, and said item is readily furnished upon
request;
2. Each unit of each advertised item, any of which is marked with a

price, is individually, clearly, and conspicuously marked with a price no
higher than the advertised price; and

3. Each unit of each advertised item is sold to customers at or
below the advertised price.

Unless, with respect to 1 , 2 and 3 above, respondent was complying
with a specific exception, limitation or restriction with respect to
store, item or price which was clearly and conspicuously disclosed in
all advertisements for the product in question.

Prvided, however, that no enforcement proceeding relating to the
unavailabilty, over price marking or overcharging of advertised
products, which is based on a survey, shall be instituted or
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commenced except on the basis of a survey conducted by, on behalf
of, or under the guidance or direction of the Commission of a sample
of respondent's retail food stores.

II. A. Defenses Applicable to Unavailability.

The following shall constitute defenses to a charge of unavailabil-
ty under Trade Regulation Rule 424, as presently drafted, Section 5
of the Federal Trade Commission Act or any provision of this order if
respondent can show:

1. That the advertised items were unavailable due to circum-
stances beyond respondent's control, that respondent did not have
notice or knowledge of such impending unavailability in time to
delete the items from the proposed advertisement, and that
respondent offered to customers a "raincheck" for each unavailable
item which entitled the holder to purchase the item in the near
future at or below the advertised price; or

2. That the advertised items were delivered to respondent's retail
food stores in quantities suffcient to meet reasonably anticipated
demand.

Presumptions Applicable to Defenses Set Forth in Section
IlA.

The following presumptions apply to the defenses set forth in
Section II.

1. Because respondent, pursuant to Section IILC.2. of this order,
has obligated itself to institute, enforce, and maintain procedures
designed to effect compliance with this order, if (a) the average,
unadjusted rate of unavailability revealed by a survey of a sample of
respondent' s retail food stores does not exceed four (4.0) percent, and

(b) the unavailability revealed by the survey is not shown to be
caused in whole or substantial part by the gross negligence or
deliberate acts or omissions of respondent, it shall be presumed that
such unavailabilty resulted from circumstances beyond respon-

dent' s control within the meaning of Section II. I. Provided, that,
sporadic unavailability caused by the gross negligence or deliberate
acts or omissions of a store level employee of respondent shall not
negate the presumption if respondent can demonstrate that it took
appropriate disciplinary action against the employee promptly after
learning that the employee s gross negligence or deliberate acts or

omissions caused such unavailabilty. Provided further, that persis-

tent unavailabilty caused by the gross negligence or deliberate acts
or omissions of a substantial number of store level employees of



459 Decision and Order

respondent shall be attributed to respondent and shall negate the
presumption.

2. If respondent is not advised in writing by the Federal Trade

Commission or its staff that it has reason to believe that respondent
has failed to make advertised items available, in violation of Trade
Regulation Rule 424 , Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act
or this order, and is not so notified within three months of the
occurrence of such alleged violation, it shall be presumed that the
alleged failure of respondent to make advertised items available was
due to circumstances beyond respondent's control within the
meaning of Section ILA.I. Such notice shall indicate each specific
item alleged to be unavailable in identified stores on specified days.

C. Defenses Applicable to Over Price Marking 

Overcharging.

The following shall constitute defenses to a charge of over price
marking or overcharging under Trade Regulation Rule 424, as
presently drafted, Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act or
any provision of this order if respondent can show:

1. That the advertised items were not marked or charged out at
or below the advertised price due to circumstances beyond respon-
dent' s control, and respondent, upon notice or knowledge of such
over price marking or overcharging, acted immediately to price
mark the goods with or charge out the goods at the advertised price;
2. That, with respect to charges of over price marking, in the case

of stores equipped with devices which "read" an identification code
marked on the packaging of items, and which transmit the
information to a computer which then transmits the correct prices of
the items to cash registers where the prices are displayed and
printed on cash register tapes, where the items (and individual units
thereof) are not price marked in any additional manner, the
advertised price of such items is clearly and conspicuously posted at
the point of display;
3. That in the case of advertised items the ultimate price of

which is to be determined by the total dollar amount of the
customer s order or the use of a coupon or other similar price
arrangement, the price at which the item is sold, and not the price
marked on the item, shall govern.

D. Presumptions Applicable To Defenses Set Forth in

Section JIC

Because respondent, pursuant to Section IILC.2. of this order,
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has obligated itself to institute, enforce, and maintain procedures
designed to effect compliance with this order, if (a) the average,
unadjusted rate of neither over price marking nor overcharging
revealed by a survey of a sample of respondent's retail food stores

exceeds two (2.0) percent, and (b) the over price marking or
overcharging revealed by the survey is not shown to be caused in

whole or substantial part by the gross negligence or deliberate acts

or omissions of respondent, it shall be presumed that such over price
marking or overcharging resulted from circumstances beyond
respondent' s control within the meaning of Section II. I. Provided,
that. sporadic over price marking or overcharging caused by the
gross negligence or deliberate acts or omissions of a store level
employee of respondent shall not negate the presumption 

respondent can demonstrate that it took appropriate disciplinary
action against the employee promptly after learning that the
employee s gross negligence or deliberate acts or omissions caused

such over price marking or overcharging. Provided further, that
persistent over price marking or overcharging caused by the gross
negligence or deliberate acts or omissions of a substantial number of
store level employees of respondent shall be attributed to respondent
and shall negate the presumption.

2. If respondent is not advised in writing by the Federal Trade
Commission or its staff that it has reason to believe that respondent
has failed to price mark or charge out advertised items at the
advertised prices in violation of Trade Regulation Rule 424, Section 5
of the Federal Trade Commission Act or this order, and is not so
notified within three months of the occurrence of such alleged
violation, it shall be presumed that the alleged failure of respondent
to make advertised items available at or below the advertised price
was due to circumstances beyond respondent's control within the

meaning of Section II. I. Such notice shall indicate each specific
item alleged to be over price marked or overcharged in identified
stores on specified days.

III. Additional Obligations of Respondent.

A. It is further ordered, That throughout each advertised sale
period in each of its retail food stores covered by an advertisement
respondent shall post conspicuously (1) at or near each doorway
affording entrance to the public, and (2) at or near the place where
customers pay for merchandise:

(1) A copy of the advertisement.
(2) The following statement:
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All items advertised are required to be readily available for sale at or below
the advertised price in each Kroger store except as specifically noted in this ad.

If an advertised item you wish to purchase is unavailable you may obtain a
rain check that will enable you to purchase this item at the advertised price in
the near future.

If you have any questions, the store manager will be glad to aBsist you.

B. It is further ordered, That respondent shall cause the following
statement to be clearly and conspicuously set forth in each printed
advertisement which represents that items are available for sale at
any of its retail food stores:

Each of these advertised items is required to be readily available for sale in
each Kroger store , except as specifically noted in this ad.

It is further ordered, That:

1. Respondent shall forthwith deliver a copy of this order to each
of its operating divisions and to each of its present and future offcers
and other personnel in its organization down to the level of and
including assistant store managers who, directly or indirectly, have
any supervisory responsibilties relating to (a) availability or price
marking of advertised items in respondent' s retail food stores, and
(b) check stand operations, or who are engaged in any aspect of
preparation, creation, or placing of advertising, and respondent shall
secure a signed statement acknowledging receipt of said order from
each such person.
2. Respondent shall institute, enforce and maintain a program

(including a continuing surveilance program) which is designed to
effect compliance with this order and which is adequate to reveal
whether the business practices of its retail food stores conform to
this order, and shall confer with any duly authorized representative
of the Commission pertaining to such program when requested to do
so by a duly authorized representative of the Commission. The
details (including methodology and procedures to ascertain and
effect compliance) of the program are set forth in an initial report on
compliance procedures submitted simultaneously with this order.
The program may be modified by respondent from time to time , upon
thirty (30) days ' advance notice to the Commission, provided, that as

modified the program shall be adequate to comply with respondent'
obligations under Part III.C.2. ofthis order.
3. Respondent shall, for a period of three (3) years subsequent to

the date ofthis order:

a. Maintain business records which show the efforts taken to
ensure continuing compliance with the terms and provisions of this
order;
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b. Grant any duly authorized representative of the Federal Trade
Commission access to all such busine s records;
c. Furnish to the Federal Trade Commission; (i) copies of such

records as reveal the results of outside surveys and such other
records as are maintained at the Kroger general offce, which are
requested by any of its duly authorized representatives within three
weeks from the date the request is received by respondent; and (ii)
copies of all other such records which are requested by any of its duly
authorized representatives as promptly as possible.
4. Respondent shall, all other provisions of this order notwith-

standing, annually for a period of three (3) years from the date that
this order becomes final, fie with the Commission a report in writing
demonstrating the effectiveness of the steps or actions taken 

respondent with regard to the aforesaid program, including a
surveilance program, and setting forth in detail the manner and
form in which it has complied with this order in the preceding year.

D. It is further ordered, That respondent shall notify the
Commission at least thirty (30) days prior to any proposed change in
the corporate respondent, such as dissolution, assignment or sale
resulting in the emergence of a successor corporation, the creation or
dissolution of subsidiaries or any other change in the respondent
which may affect compliance obligations arising out of this order.

E. It is further ordered, That the respondent herein shall within
60 days after service upon it of this order, fie with the Commission a
report, in writing, setting forth in detail the manner and form in
which it has complied with this order.
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IN THE MATTER OF

FISHER FOODS, INC

CONSENT ORDER, ETC., IN REGARD TO ALLEGED VIOLATION OF
THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ACT

Docket ,9062. Complaint, Oct. 28, 1975 - Decision, Nov. 11, 1977

This consent order , among other things , requires a Bedford Heights, Ohio, retail
food store chain, to make each of its advertised items readily available for sale
to customers in its stores , to have advertised items correctly priced and to sell
those items at or below the advertised price. Further, the firm must post
copies of advertisements and notices of the availability of "rainchecks " for
unavailable items.

Appearances

For the Commission: Aaron H Bullof! Melvin H Wolovits and
Paul K. Trause.

For the respondent: John F McClatchey, Thompson, Hine Flory,
Cleveland, Ohio.

COMPLAINT

Pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Trade Commission Act,
and by virtue of the authority vested in it by that Act, the Federal
Trade Commission , having reason to believe that Fisher Foods , Inc.
a corporation , hereinafter sometimes referred to as respondent, has
violated the provisions of said Act, and it appearing to the
Commission that a proceeding by it in respect thereof would be in
the public interest, hereby issues its complaint stating its charges in
that respect as follows:

COU T I

Alleging violation of Section 5 of the
Commission Act (15 U.s.

Federal
45)

Trade

PARAGRAPH 1. Respondent Fisher Foods, Inc. is a corporation
organized, existing, and doing business under and by virtue of the
laws of the State of Ohio, with its principal office and place of
business located at 5300 Richmond Road , Bedford Heights, Ohio.

PAR. 2. Respondent is now, and for some time last past has been,
engaged in the operation of a chain of retail food stores. Respondent
operates food stores and food departments in Ohio, Kentucky,

Northern Ilinois, and California. Its volume of business has been
and is substantial. In the operation of its retail food stores,
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respondent offers and promotes for sale to its customers an extensive
line of products, including " food," as that term is defined in the
Federal Trade Commission Act, groceries, or other merchandise.
Many of the said products offered for sale and sold are manufactured
or processed by respondent through its various divisions, subsidiar-
ies, and affiiates at manufacturing and processing plants located in
the State of Ohio. Many other of the said products are purchased
from numerous suppliers located throughout the United States.

PAR. 3. In the course and conduct of its business as aforesaid,
respondent now causes , and for some time last past has caused,
directly or indirectly, the aforesaid food and grocery products or
other merchandise to be shipped and distributed from the aforesaid
manufacturing and processing plants, or from its other sources of
supply, to warehouses and distribution centers , and thereafter to its
retail food stores located in various states other than the state of
origination , distribution, or storage of said products. Respondent
maintains, and at all times mentioned herein has maintained, a

substantial course of trade in the production, processing, distribu-
tion, advertising, offering for sale, and sale of the aforesaid food and
grocery products or other merchandise in commerce, as "commerce
is defined in the Federal Trade Commission Act.

PAR. 4. In the course and conduct of its business as aforesaid, and
for some time last past, respondent has been , and is now disseminat-
ing and causing the dissemination of certain advertisements
concerning the aforesaid food and grocery products or other
merchandise by various means in commerce, as "commerce" is
defined in the Federal Trade Commission Act, including but not
limited to advertisements in newspapers of general and interstate
circulation and other advertising media, for the purpose of inducing,
and which have been and are likely to induce, directly or indirectly,
the purchase of said advertised products and other products from
respondent; and respondent has been, and is now, disseminating and
causing the dissemination of advertisements concerning said pro-
ducts by various means, including but not limited to the aforesaid
media for the purpose of inducing, and which have been and are
likely to induce, directly or indirectly, the purchase from respondent
of the said advertised products and other products in commerce, as
commerce" is defined in the Federal Trade Commission Act. Many

of the said advertisements list or depict the aforesaid food and
grocery products, or other merchandise , and also contain statements
and representations concerning the prices or terms at which said

advertised products were being offered and presented for sale , as
well as the time periods during which the offers would be in effect.
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PAR. 5. Through the use of such advertisements disseminated in

various areas ofthe United States served by respondent's retail food
stores, respondent has represented directly or by implication that in
those stores covered by such advertisements, throughout the
effective periods of the advertised offers, the items listed or depicted
in such advertisements would be:

A. Readily available for sale to customers;
B. Readily and conspicuously available for sale at or below the

advertised prices; and
C. Sold to persons who attempted to purchase such items at

prices at or below the advertised prices.
PAR. 6. In truth and in fact, in a significant number of

respondent' s retail food stores covered by such advertisements,
during the effective periods of the advertised offers, a substantial
number of the items listed or depicted in the said advertisements
were:
A. Not readily available for sale;
B. Not readily and conspicuously available for sale at or below

the advertised prices; or
C. Sold to persons who attempted to purchase such items at

prices higher than the advertised prices.

Therefore, the statements and representations as referred to herein,
were false, misleading and deceptive.

PAR. 7. By disseminating or causing the dissemination of advertise-

ments which offer or present for sale items as aforesaid, and by
failng to have, in a significant number of its stores covered by such
advertisements, during the effective periods of the advertised offers,
substantially all of the aforesaid advertised items:

A. Readily available for sale to customers in quantities suffcient
to meet reasonably anticipated demands;
B. Conspicuously available for sale at or below the advertised

prices;

and by sellng substantial numbers of said items to persons
attempting to purchase such items at prices in excess of the
advertised price, respondent has engaged in unfair acts and
practices.

PAR. 8. In the course and conduct of its business, and at all times
referred to herein, respondent has been, and now is, in substantial
competition in commerce, with corporations, par'tnerships , firms

and individuals in the retail food and grocery business.
PAR. 9. The use by respondent of the aforesaid unfair and false,

misleading and deceptive statements, representations, acts and
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practices , has had the capacity and tendency to mislead members of
the purchasing public into the erroneous and mistaken belief that
the said statements and representations were true , and to induce
such persons to go to respondent's stores and to purchase from
respondent substantial quantities ofthe advertised items at prices in
excess of the advertised prices and substantial quantities of items

other than the advertised items, some of those other items being

higher priced or otherwise less desirable to Fisher customers than
the unavailable advertised items , by reason of such erroneous and
mistaken belief

PAR. 10. The acts and practices as aforesaid were all to the
prejudice and injury of the public and of respondent's competitors
and constituted unfair methods of competition in commerce and
unfair or deceptive acts or practices in commerce in violation of
Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act.

COU T II

Alleging violation of the Federal Trade Comrrssion Trade Regulation
Rule Concerning Retail Food Store Advertising and Marketing Practices
(16 C.F. R. 424 el seq.

). 

and SectlOn of the Federal Trade CommissIOn
Act. the allegations of Paragraphs One, Two , Three, Four and Eight
respectively, of Count I hereof are incorporated by reference in Count II
as iffully set forth verbatim.

PAR. 11. The Federal Trade Commission , pursuant to the Federal
Trade Commission Act. as amended, 15 U.S. C. 41, et seq.. and the
provisions of Subpart B , Part 1 , of the Commission s Procedures and
Rules of Practice, 16 C. 1.11, et seq., conducted a proceeding for
the promulgation of a trade regulation rule regarding retail food
store advertising and marketing practices. Notice of this proceeding,
including a proposed rule, was published in the Federal Register 

November 14 , 1969 (34 F. 18252). Interested parties were thereaf-

ter afforded opportunity to participate in the proceeding through the
submission of written data, views, and arguments . and to appear and
orally express their views as to the proposed rule and to suggest
amendments, revisions, and additions thereto.

The Commission considered all matters of fact, law, policy, and
discretion , including the data, views, and arguments presented on
the record by interested parties in response to the Notice, as

prescribed by law, determined that the adoption of the Trade

Regulation Rule and Statement of its Basis and Purpose was in the
public interest, and, accordingly, promulgated the Trade Regulation
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Rule Concerning Retail Food Store *dvertising and Marketing

Practices on May 13 , 1971, effective July)2, 1971.
PAR. 12. Respondent is a member of the retail food stores industry,

and its acts and practices in connection with the sale of food and

grocery products or other merchandise being subject to the jurisdic-
tion of Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act are within the
intent and meaning of, and are subject to, the provisions of the
aforesaid Trade Regulation Rule.

PAR. 13. In connection with its aforesaid advertisements, respon-

dent, in a substantial number of instances, has failed to comply with
Paragraph (1) of the aforesaid Trade Regulation Rule by offering
food and grocery products or other merchandise subject to the

jurisdictional requirements of Section 5 of the Federal Trade
Commission Act for sale at stated prices by means of advertisements
disseminated in areas served by certain of its stores which were
covered by such advertisements but which, during the advertised

sale periods, neither has such products in stock nor provided clear
and adequate notice that the items were in stock and might be
obtained upon request.

PAR. 14. In connection with its advertisements disseminated as

aforesaid, respondent, in a substantial number of instances, has
failed to comply with Paragraph (2) of the Trade Regulation Rule by
offering products for sale at stated prices by means of advertise-
ments disseminated in areas served by certain of its stores which are
covered by such advertisements and by failng in those stores to
charge out to persons who attempted to purchase such items,
substantial numbers of such advertised products at prices at or below
the advertised prices during the effective periods of the advertise-
ments, thereby failing to make said advertised items conspicuously
and readily available for sale at or below the advertised prices.

PAR. 15. Respondent's aforesaid violations of the Trade Regulation
Rule Concerning Retail Food Store Advertising and Marketing
Practices constitute unfair and deceptive acts and practices in
violation of Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act.

DECISION AND ORDER

The Federal Trade Commission having heretofore issued its
complaint charging the respondent, Fisher Foods , Inc. , named in the
caption hereto with violation of Section 5(a)(1) of the Federal Trade
Commission Act, and the respondent, Fisher Foods, Inc. , having been
served with a copy of the complaint and with a copy of the notice of
contemplated relief accompanying said complaint; and

The respondent and counsel for the Commission having thereafter




